
30 October 2018

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Monday, 5 November 2018
beginning at

7:00 pm
in the

Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

TO: Councillor Cynthia Garton (Chair)
Councillor Janice Asman (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Margaret Allingham Councillor Carol Boulton
Councillor Ian Corben Councillor Richard Gomer
Councillor Keith House Councillor Lucy Jurd
Councillor Rupert Kyrle Councillor Derek Pretty
Councillor Bruce Tennent Councillor Adrian Trace

Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services SpecialistTel: 023 8068 
8112; Email: Cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk

Julia Birt, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8437; Email: 
julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

_____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the 
meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To 

register please contact the Democratic Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording 

and photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using 
tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA

1. Public Participation    

2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 October 2018. 

3. Apologies    

4. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

5. Chair's report    

6. Local Area Manager's Report    

7. Financial Management    (Pages 7 - 12)

8. Presentation on Planning Guidelines    

9. Planning Application - Strategic Park, Comines Way, Hedge End     

New 180 no. space car park with access off Comines Way providing additional 
parking for commercial buildings in Strategic Park. (Ref: F/18/83830)

**PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS ITEM HAS NOW BEEN WITHDRAWN** 

10. Traffic Regulation Order - Various Roads    (Pages 13 - 18)

11. Footpath Diversion - Woodhouse Lane    

12. Planning Appeals     

The Legal Services Manager to report:-

(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:-
 

Hillside, 140 Winchester Street, Botley - Appeal against the Council’s 
refusal of planning permission for Outline: Erection of 2no. detached three 
bed dwellings with associated double garages, car parking, amenity space 
and access off Winchester Road (access and layout only, all other matters 
to be reserved) (Ref: O/17/81515)

This was a delegated decision.

146 Winchester Street, Botley – Appeal against the Council’s refusal of 
planning permission for the retention of mobile home, link unit and art 
studio. (Ref: F/18/82327)

This was a delegated decision. 



DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Monday, 10 December 2018 at 7:00 pm

in the Hedge End 2000 Centre, St John's 
Road, Hedge End, SO30 4AF

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Monday, 1 October 2018  (7:10 pm – 7:37 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Garton (Chair); Councillors Asman, Allingham, Boulton, Corben, 
Gomer, House, Jurd, Kyrle, Pretty and Tennent

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Trace

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

24. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation on this occasion.

25. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2018 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda.

27. CHAIR'S REPORT

The Chair reported the following;

Ageas Bowl

The Chair expressed thanks to the many Council officers who had helped 
with the staging of the recent test match at the Ageas Bowl. In particular 
the Streetscene staff who had kept the stadium clean and tidy whilst, other 
staff oversaw traffic management arrangements to help pedestrians and 
vehicles leave the site safely. 

Berry Theatre entrance

The public art project to upgrade the entrance to the Berry Theatre was 
progressing well. The steering group had shortlisted artists who had been 
invited to submit their designs so that these could be displayed at the D.art 
Centre on the Wildern School campus. A public vote would then be held 
with the steering group endorsing the final decision.

1

Agenda Item 2



2

Itchen Valley Country Park

The Chair was pleased to attend the Welcome event at the new Woodland 
Café at Itchen Valley Country Park. Guests were invited to sample the new 
menu and also to view the interactive play area which was already proving 
to be a hit with young children and their parents. The new play trail was 
also in high demand and attendances at the facility had increased during 
the Summer holidays. The Barn would now be open seven days a week 
throughout the year.
   
Hedge End, West End and Botley (HEWEB) Youth Partnership

The Chair had attended the recent meeting of the HEWEB Youth 
Partnership at the Scout Hut in West End. The meeting was well attended 
and it was clear that there were some very impressive facilities, activities 
and youth providers within the HEWEB area.

Dowd’s Farm 

The final design for the improved youth facilities at Dowd’s Farm had now 
been approved by Hedge End Town Council. Members would recall that 
this Committee provided funding for the project. In addition a review of 
signage and litter bin provision was being undertaken by staff at the Town 
Council and Borough Council.

Planning Applications

There were a number of pending planning applications which needed to be 
considered by the Committee in the coming months. Therefore, an 
additional Committee may need to be arranged before the end of the 
calendar year. This would be finalised with the Council’s Development 
Management team and members of the public would be advised 
accordingly.

28. LOCAL AREA MANAGER'S REPORT

The Local Area Manager reported the following:

Boorley Green Working Group

This Group had met on Monday 17 September 2018. Marie Lou Litton, 
Headteacher, and Hilary Manton, Business Manager, at Wildern School 
gave a presentation about the new Boorley Park Primary School which 
was scheduled to open in September 2019. 

The Boorley Park developer stated that the target occupancy of dwellings 
is 220 by the end of December 2018. He was asked to provide a Gantt 

2



3

chart which displayed the build out of the community facilities for the next 
meeting which was scheduled for Monday 12 November 2018.

Boorley Green Public Art

A public consultation event would be held on Saturday 20 October 2018 at 
the Peartree Inn, Boorley Green. Residents would be asked to vote for 
public art themes and to comment on how this would be distributed within 
the sites at Boorley Park and Boorley Gardens.

Responses to residents’ and councillors’ requests

Allen Road, Hedge End – small wooden posts (dragons’ teeth) would be 
installed in an area of open space to prevent overrunning by vehicles. The 
cost would be £353.

Mortimer Road car park, Botley – the barriers had been damaged which 
meant that the car park could not be secured. The Direct Services’ team 
had now carried out the necessary repairs.

Waterbeech Drive, Hedge End – Members would recall that this project 
involved the supply and installation of hardstanding. This had now been 
undertaken by the Council’s Construction and Maintenance team.

Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) – the latest TROs were advertised on 
the Council’s website. A report would be produced for the next Committee 
meeting with recommendations as to whether to progress these schemes.

Speed Limit Reminders (SLRs)

The annual schedule for HEWEB had been previously agreed by 
members. This schedule recommenced in July 2018 and the details of the 
sites had been forwarded to the Clerks of the town and parish councils.

HEWEB Community Grants

The closing date for community grant applications was Wednesday 31 
October 2018.

Assistant Local Area Manager

Siobhan Strand’s secondment as the Assistant Local Area Manager for 
HEWEB and Eastleigh Local Area Committees had been extended to July 
2019.

29. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
Item 6) which recommended funding that would support projects which 

3



4

met identified local needs. The projects would also contribute to the 
achievement of corporate priorities. 

RESOLVED – 

(1) That the contribution of £300 towards the Week of Action 
during October half term be approved; 

(2) That the funding of £5,161 for the installation of entrance 
barriers at Hedge End Train Station be approved; 

(3) That the funding of £1,733 for the dropped kerb crossing at 
Downscroft Gardens be approved; and

(4) That the Chair’s approval for emergency repair works of £392 
for the boardwalk behind Berrywood School be noted. 

30. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES

Development Management staff gave a short presentation on guidelines 
that had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; 
in particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  
This was set against the broader policy framework.

31. PLANNING APPLICATION - OPEN SPACE AT RATCLIFFE ROAD, 
HEDGE END

The Committee considered the report of the Lead Specialist for Housing 
and Development (Agenda Item 9) concerning an application for change of 
use of part open space into 7no. additional car parking spaces (resulting in 
a total of 13no. car parking spaces) with associated landscaping works. 
(Ref: F/18/83554).

The Committee was advised of the following update to Condition 1 – “The 
development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 
the following plans numbered: EC/01775/002 Rev D, EC/01775/003, 
EC/01775/004 Rev B.”

RESOLVED  -

That the application be PERMITTED subject to the conditions and 
reasons set out in the report and the amended condition above. 

32. PLANNING APPLICATION - ITCHEN VALLEY COUNTRY PARK, WEST 
END

The Committee considered the report of the Lead Specialist for Housing 
and Development (Agenda Item 9) concerning an application for display of 
2no. non-illuminated entrance welcome signs, 4no. non-illuminated galley 

4



5

flag signs and 2no. non-illuminated fascia signs to Woodland Café. (Ref: 
A/18/83891)

The Committee was advised of the following updates;

West End Parish Council had raised no objection.

County Highways had raised no objection subject to an informative 
ensuring that sign one is positioned 2.4 metres from the highway for public 
safety. 

RESOLVED – 

That consent be GRANTED subject to the recommended conditions 
and reasons as set out in the report and the informative as above. 

33. PLANNING APPEALS

The Legal Services Manager reported:-

(a) that the following appeals had been lodged:-

10 Romill Close, West End – Appeal against the Council’s refusal of 
planning permission for the erection of a detached 1no. one 
bedroom dwelling with associated access and parking on land to 
the rear of 10 Romill Close. (Ref: F/18/82388)

This was a delegated decision. 

(b) that the following appeals had been allowed:-

1 Kinsbourne Way, Thornhill – Appeal against the Council’s refusal 
for a single storey rear extension (Ref: F/17/82176)

This was a delegated decision. 

(c) that the following appeals had been dismissed:-

9 Bursledon Road, Hedge End – Appeal against the Council’s 
refusal of conversion of existing house to create 1no. pair of semi-
detached dwellings, comprising 1no. 3 bed and 1no. 2 bed, 
including erection of rear single storey extensions and rear two 
storey extensions and associated car parking. (Ref: F/17/80539)

This was a delegated decision. 

1 Kinsbourne Way, Thornhill – Appeal against the Council’s refusal 
for the construction of a new three bedroom dwelling (Ref: 
F/17/82176)

This was a delegated decision. 

5



6

RESOLVED -

That the report be noted.

6



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Monday 5 November 2018  

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

Report of the Local Area Manager  

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that this Committee: 
 
(1) approves the formal allocation of £100,000 plus interest for public art within Boorley 

Park as per the Section 106 agreement schedule; 

(2) approves the stated Fees and Charges for Itchen Valley Country Park to come into 
effect in January 2019 AND 

(3) approves an increase of 20p to the parking tariffs for Hedge End Train Station car 
park and Stroudley Way commencing from 7 February 2019  

 

Summary 
The recommended funding will support project(s) which meet identified local needs. The 
project(s) will also contribute to the achievement of corporate priorities. Councillors are 
requested to approve this funding along with the stated fees and charges for the devolved 
services at Itchen Valley Country Park, Hedge End Train Station car park and Stroudley 
Way. 

Statutory Powers 
Section1 Localism Act 2011 and Section 151 of the Local Government Act  

 

 Strategic Implications 

1. Public art can be described in many ways such as a statue, perhaps a painting or 
mural, benches, way markers (route signage), music and dance performances. In 
terms of strategic importance, it can enable healthier lifestyles through activities such 
as walking and cycling which means that people use alternative transport thereby 
contributing to the Council’s tackling congestion priority. People may be encouraged 
to use the open and green spaces – the provision of benches will help those who 
need to rest and the project accords with the aims of Local First in terms of 
acknowledging local views and needs. The feedback from local councillors and the 
local community development worker is that people wish to celebrate Botley’s history 
and also to recognise the previous uses of the site through the theme of nature. 
Public art is also an effective way of making a statement about the local area and can 

7

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

connect the different groups and provide a focal point.  

2. A number of fees and charges are now set by Local Area Committees following a 
Cabinet decision in September 2012. In accordance with the budget strategy 
approved by Cabinet in October, fees and charges are being reviewed with the 
intention of increases based on a 3.5% yield, being introduced from January 2019 
where possible. However previously, this Committee agreed that the car park charges 
for Hedge End Train Station and Stroudley Way were fixed for 2 years until 6 
February 2019.  

Public Art - Boorley Park  

3. Construction of dwellings at Boorley Park, formerly Boorley Green is progressing and 
at the time of writing, it is hoped that 220 dwellings will be occupied by the end of 
December 2018.   

4. The Council has been carrying out its responsibilities regarding the Section 106 
planning agreement in terms of the provision of public art. A steering group has been 
established and this includes representatives from the Developers’ consortium, Botley 
Parish Councillors and Parish Clerk, Boorley Park’s Community Development Worker 
and Borough Council staff. The steering group has agreed a public art statement in 
line with the Section 106 requirements. 

5. This Group has also been successful in obtaining an “in principle” agreement with the 
developers of Boorley Gardens to combine their Section 106 agreement for public art 
with the Boorley Park contribution. Given the proximity of the sites and the aim of 
integrating them with the whole of Boorley Green and Hedge End North, it makes 
sense, in terms of economies of scale, to pool this funding. Similar themes could be 
used and for example, the provision of wayfarers would connect local walking and 
cycle routes across these sites.  

6. As councillors are aware, the Boorley Gardens site has outline planning permission 
and reserved matters approval for Phase 1 with reserved matters for the remaining 
phases to be considered in the New Year.  Therefore any funding cannot be formally 
allocated by this Committee currently but councillors are asked to note the Steering 
Group’s intention to combine the funding and to consult on this basis. 

7. The Steering Group has identified 2 broad themes and these are connecting with 
nature and local history. Residents and the wider community were invited to a 
consultation event on 20 October to discuss their ideas and also to add any other 
themes and ideas to assist the Steering Group in its deliberations. This Consultation 
is also available on line until 18 November 2018 at:- 
www.eastleigh.gov.uk/boorleygreenart. 

8. Given the scheduling of payments, the public art projects will be delivered over a 
period of time, possibly 9 - 10 years. This will enable new residents, school children 
and community groups to be involved in public art projects as building phases are 
completed and funding becomes available. 

9. Councillors are therefore requested to approve the formal allocation of £100,000 plus 
interest as per the Section 106 agreement 0/12/71514 between the Borough Council 

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

and the developers. 

 Fees and Charges – Itchen Valley Country Park  

10. The Council’s Country Parks Visitor Services Manager has recommended the 
following increases in fees and charges for Itchen Valley Country Park as follows:  

ITCHEN VALLEY COUNTRY PARK    

 

Use of Bridle Route (Private) 

1 Jan 2018 

£ 

1 Jan 2019 

£ 

Change 

% 

- Per horse 52.50 Under 
review 

N/A 

Use of Bridle Route (Schools) 1 Jan 2018 

£  

1 Jan 2019 

£ 

Change 

% 

- Per animal 75.00 Under 
review 

N/A 

Barbeque Charges 1 Jan 2018 

£ 

1 Jan 2019 

£ 

Change 

% 

Up to 60 people Monday – Thursday 46.00 47.50 3.26 

Up to 60 people Friday – Sunday 61.00 63.00 3.28 

Over 60 people Monday – Thursday 73.50 76.00 3.40 

Over 60 people Friday – Sunday 86.50 89.50 3.47 

School Parties 1 Jan 2018 

£ 

1 Jan 2019 

£ 

Change 

% 

- Classroom hire 55.00 57.00 3.63 

- Equipment hire 29.50 30.50 3.39 

- Visit / Activity – Led by EBC Staff – per child 5.25 5.50 4.76 

General Guided Walks (Minimum Charge) 1 Jan 2018 

£ 

1 Jan 2019 

£ 

Change 

% 

- Adults 3.80 3.95 3.95 

9



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

- Concessions 2.60 2.70 3.85 

Guided Walks / Activities for Groups on 
request 

1 Jan 2018 

£ 

1 Jan 2019 

£ 

Change 

% 

- Charge per hour 36.50 37.80 3.56 

Play Schemes – Daily Charge (formerly 
weekly charge of £82 per week) 

1 Jan 2018 

£ 

1 Jan 2019 

£ 

Change 

% 

– daily charge 24.00 25.00 4.17 

Hire of High Hill Field (Minimum Charge) 1 Jan 2018 

£ 

1 Jan 2019 

£ 

Change 

% 

Charitable organisations    

- Up to 1,000 people 350.00 362.00 3.43 

- Over 1,000 people  640.00 662.00 3.44 

Non – Charitable Organisations    

- Up to 1,000 people 640.00 662.00 3.44 

- Over 1,000 people  1575.00 1630.00 3.49 

Room hire per hour (minimum charge 2 hours) 24.00 25.00 4.17 

Room Hire for Parties (Up to 5 hours) 54.00 56.00 3.70 

Car Parking  Nov. 2017 

£ 

Jan 2019 

£ 

Change  

% 

Up to one hour 1.30  1.40 7.69 

Up to two hours 2.50 

 

2.60 

 

4.00 

 

Up to three hours 3.70 3.90 5.41 

Four hours+ 4.30 4.50 4.65 

Other parking charges Nov 2017 

£ 

Jan 2019 

£ 

Change  

% 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Coaches 20.00 21.00 5.00 

Orange / Blue badges Free Free N/A 

Motorcycles Free Free N/A 

Annual Permits 45.00  47.00 4.44 

6 Monthly Permits 25.00 26.00 4.00 

Quarterly Permits 15.00   16.00 6.67 

 

11. Councillors will recall that the fees and charges for the bridle routes were frozen last 
year following disruption to this provision because of the tree works. The future of the 
bridle routes is currently under further discussion as part of the master planning for 
the Park so any proposed fees and charges will be brought to a future Committee 
meeting for consideration.  

12. The fees and charges at Itchen Valley Country Park have been rounded up and the 
overall increase is 3.86%. It is difficult to judge the exact impact as the car parking 
income is fluctuating due to issues with the performance of the new machines. Once 
these become more reliable, then staff will be more confident that the forecast will be 
achieved. Councillors are reminded that the cost of the new machines needs to be 
repaid to the Council’s Cabinet from any over performance against budget. 

 Fees and Charges – Hedge End Train Station car park 

13. At this Committee’s meeting on 7 November 2016, it was agreed to fix the parking 
tariffs at the train station car park and at Stroudley Way for 2 years until 6 February 
2019. 

14. The current all day charge is £3.50, Monday to Friday, 8am – 4pm with no charges 
over the weekend or on bank holidays. 

15. The Council Strategy Lead (Environment) has advised that the charge should be 
increased to £3.70 giving a monetary increase of £2,027 which is just short of the 
projected forecast of £2,105.25. 

16.  Councillors are requested to approve the proposed fees and charges as outline in this 
report.  

Financial Implications 

17.  There will be sufficient funding within this Committee’s capital budgets to afford any 
proposed public art project(s) but the risk assessment below should be read in 
conjunction with this section.  

18. If this Committee chooses not to implement the recommended fees and charges, it 
will be liable for any shortfall.  

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Risk Assessment  

19. Payments for the Boorley Park public art are contingent upon receipt of payments 
from the developers. There is a small risk that payments will not be made but if this 
did occur, the Council would not progress with the project(s). 

20.      The contributions for the public art at Boorley Park and Boorley Gardens will not 
exceed 5 in total. Therefore this is compliant with current legislation and the project(s) 
will be in line with the relevant S106 agreements. 

21. The policy of increasing the yield for fees and charges at a level of 1% above inflation 
as measured by CPI is part of the Council’s approved Budget Strategy. There is a risk 
that the proposed charges will not provide the overall anticipated yield of 3.5% but 
this will be monitored closely during the quarterly corporate budget monitoring 
processes throughout the year. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

22. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision does not 
relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or fostering 
good relations between different people.  An Equality Impact Assessment has not 
been carried out. 

Conclusion 

23. The recommended project(s) will provide future benefit to the local community. 
Members are requested to approve the funding stream and also to approve fees and 
charges at Itchen Valley Country Park, Hedge End Train Station and Stroudley Way. 

JULIA BIRT 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 15 October 2018 
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8437 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works or documents which 
would disclose exempt or confidential information 

None 

  

 

12



HEDGE END, WEST END AND BOTLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

MONDAY 5 NOVEMBER 2018 

ON- STREET PARKING RESTRICTIONS  

Report of the Environment Lead Specialist 

 

Recommendation 

1. It is recommended that given the on-going safety issues at these locations 
and having regard to the comment received during the consultation, it is 
recommended that Councillors approve the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restrictions on Swincombe Rise, Freegrounds Avenue, Charterhouse Way, 
Kings Copse Road Mapleton Gardens, and Beechwood Rise. The proposals 
will address the current safety issues whilst reducing the impact on residents 
parking; and  
 

2. It is further recommended that the proposal to restrict Gatcombe Gardens be 
removed from this order. 

 

Summary 
 
New waiting restrictions have been proposed in Charterhouse Way, Swincombe Rise, 
Gatcombe Gardens, Freegrounds Avenue, Kings Copse Road, Mapleton Road, 
Sherbourne Way, junction with Freegrounds Avenue, and Beechwood Rise. Having 
advertised the proposed Traffic Regulation Order, the following responses were received:- 

Two objections from residents in Swincombe Rise, both stating that there is a lack of on- 
road parking and that they move their vehicles when asked to do so.  

Four objections to proposals for Gatcombe Gardens (NB; this is actually 2 households 
each submitting 2 objections).   

One letter stating the restriction at Sherbourne Way / Freegrounds Avenue should be 
extended to avoid sightline obstruction. 

Two emails regarding Charterhouse Way; requesting that the restrictions go further than 
indicated in the proposed order   

No objections were received for Kings Copse Road, Mapleton Gardens and Beechwood 
Rise.  This report summarises the responses received and recommends how to proceed 
with the proposals. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004. 
 

13

Agenda Item 10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Legal Agreements 
 
Agency Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
Background 

3. A consultation exercise has recently been concluded in relation to the 
proposed implementation of on-street parking restrictions at various locations 
in Hedge End and West End. This section summarises the responses 
received from residents in relation to each location and the Committee is 
asked to consider the comments received, in order to inform their decision on 
the implementation, or otherwise, of the Traffic Regulation Order.  
 

4. Swincombe Rise; The respondents stated they are unaware of access issues 
for refuse vehicles and that when they block a neighbours drive, they always 
go and move their vehicle. For information Swincombe Rise was investigated 
in response to reported and/or known obstruction issues. The refuse vehicle 
drivers find they are unable to collect from some properties because the 
access road is subject to parking within the junction. Obviously this gives 
cause for concern because a refuse truck is similar in size to a fire engine, for 
which access should always be available. 

5.  The borough council has received complaints from residents advising that 
there are occasions when they have to go knocking on neighbours’ doors 
requesting  cars be moved so they can get on or off of their driveways; 
unsurprisingly they feel that this is not acceptable.  A (TRO) proposing ‘no 
waiting at any time’ restrictions has been progressed, having been prioritised 
by the Hedge End West End and Botley Local Area Committee. 

6. Gatcombe Gardens has been investigated in response to reported concerns 
and it has been observed that vehicles are being parked adjacent to the traffic 
calming pinch- point adjacent to a T- junction, contrary to Rule 243 of the 
Highway Code. A (TRO) proposing ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions has 
been requested, having been prioritised by the Hedge End West End and 
Botley Local Area Committee.  

7. Freegrounds Avenue (junction with Sherbourne Way) has been investigated in 
response to reported and/or known visibility issues at the junction. Whilst no 
objection was received, one resident opined that the restriction was not 
lengthy enough to solve the issue and they requested the restriction to be 
increased. A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for proposing ‘no waiting at any 
time’ restrictions has been progressed, having been prioritised by the Hedge 
End West End and Botley Local Area Committee. 

8. Charterhouse Way has been investigated in response to reported and/or 
known obstructive parking issues. Two responses have been received, one 
requesting the restrictions be increased, the other requesting greater detail of 
where the restrictions are proposed. Members are advised that the second 
respondent has been spoken to and as a result, is not objecting to the 
proposals. Vehicles have been observed parking adjacent to junctions, 

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

contrary to Rule 243 of the Highway Code.  A (TRO) proposing ‘no waiting at 
any time’ restrictions has been progressed, having been prioritised by the 
Hedge End West End and Botley Local Area Committee. 

9. Site visits were undertaken to determine whether the proposed restrictions will 
address the issues at these locations. Initial consultation was undertaken with 
the statutory consultees, including the emergency services and public 
transport operators. Additionally local Members and Hampshire County 
Council (HCC) were consulted and no objections to the proposals were 
received from them. 

10. This report details the objections, comments and support received during the 
public consultation period and makes a recommendation on changes that 
could be considered. 

11. Swincombe Rise; it would appear that the objectors are either unaware or 
unwilling to accept the consequences of the obstructive parking. The over-
riding issue is one of safety with the potential for emergency vehicles to be 
obstructed in the same way as is regularly experienced by refuse vehicles. 
Measures to control parking within the junction should be implemented, whilst 
retaining as much on -road parking as possible 

12. Gatcombe Gardens; It should be noted that there have been no complaints 
from residents about obstruction or reports of service vehicles being unable to 
gain access. However habitual parking within the junction has been observed 
and should be discouraged.. 

13. The comments received regarding Freegrounds Avenue junction with 
Sherbourne Way should be supported and the lines extended, to ensure sight 
lines are kept clear enough to allow drivers emerging from Sherbourne Way to 
have adequate side road visibility. 

14. The comments received in relation to Charterhouse Way are requesting lines 
to be extended. However the view of Officers is that current proposals be 
retained and the location is monitored, as extending the lines may be overly 
restrictive. 

Consultation 

15. The formal consultation was advertised in the Hampshire Independent 
newspaper, on the Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) website, the HCC Public 
Notices Portal and on public notices placed throughout affected areas. 

16. Officers received comments regarding the proposals as listed below 

Statement of Reasons: 

17. To implement a ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ restriction on Swincombe Rise, 
Gatcombe Gardens, Freegrounds Avenue, Charterhouse Way, Kings Copse 
Road Mapleton Gardens, and Beechwood Rise in order to improve road 
safety. The effect of the restriction will be to; 

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

-  prevent obstructive parking within Swincombe Rise,  Freegrounds Avenue, 
Charterhouse Way, Kings Copse Road, Mapleton Gardens and Beechwood 
Rise 

Summary of Comments: 

Swincombe Rise; objecting due to a lack of on- road parking  

Gatcombe Gardens; resident don’t wish to see yellow lines on the local roads  

Charterhouse Way; supported the implementation of restrictions but could 
they be implemented along the whole of Charterhouse Way? 

Freegrounds Avenue; resident stated that the restrictions would not solve 
current issue and needed to go further 

Response to comments: 

18. The support for the restriction in Charterhouse Way is noted and the point 
raised about increasing the restriction was also noted, ongoing monitoring of 
the location to be undertaken.  

19. The objection to the restriction in Swincombe Rise is noted, however it is felt 
that measures to prevent obstruction outweigh the lack of on- road parking 
objection. 

20. Gatcombe Gardens; the habitual parking within the junction should be 
discourage. However a lack of resident complaints relating to obstruction or 
reports of service vehicles not being able to get access weakens the case to 
implement 

21. Freegrounds Avenue, junction with Sherbourne Way; the objection to minimal 
restriction is noted. Increasing the restriction length to safeguard the sightlines 
is supported by Officers and should be taken forward as part of the 
consolidation order. 

Financial Implications 

22. The cost of the TRO and associated signs and road markings are funded 
through the Local Area Committee budget.   

23. Any amendments or new proposals which require the Traffic Regulation Order 
to be re-advertised and further consultation to be carried out, will incur 
additional costs relating to staff time and advertisement expenses that were 
not included in the original estimate for the work. Due to time and budget 
limitations, such changes would be better addressed through inclusion in a 
future Consolidation TRO. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

24. An equal opportunities assessment has not been carried out because the 
report does not contain proposals for significant changes to existing services, 

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

polices or strategies and does not introduce any new services, policies or 
strategies. The proposed restrictions will not result in a loss of existing 
disabled bays. 

Conclusions 

25. The proposed Traffic Regulation Order to introduce new waiting restrictions in 
Hedge End, West End and Botley received six objections and three comments  

26. This report takes this into account and makes a recommendation to address 
the current safety concerns. 

 
BRET WILLERS 

Environment Lead Specialist 

Date: 04/10/2018 
Contact Officer: David Pickett 
Tel No: 02380 68 8230 
E-mail: David.pickett@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: none 
Report No: heweb/17-18/002 
 

 

LOCALISM ACT 2011, SECTION 1 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

  
 

 

 
 

17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Financial Management
	1. Public art can be described in many ways such as a statue, perhaps a painting or mural, benches, way markers (route signage), music and dance performances. In terms of strategic importance, it can enable healthier lifestyles through activities such as walking and cycling which means that people use alternative transport thereby contributing to the Council’s tackling congestion priority. People may be encouraged to use the open and green spaces – the provision of benches will help those who need to rest and the project accords with the aims of Local First in terms of acknowledging local views and needs. The feedback from local councillors and the local community development worker is that people wish to celebrate Botley’s history and also to recognise the previous uses of the site through the theme of nature. Public art is also an effective way of making a statement about the local area and can connect the different groups and provide a focal point. 
	Public Art - Boorley Park 

	10 Traffic Regulation Order - Various Roads
	Financial Implications
	Conclusions


